IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT ;.. A
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ALABAMA |

SOUTHERN DIVISION oL ops R
! j% L7 23 py 2i g

VICKI V. BUSBY, ) D5 HICi couny
individually and on behalf of all others ) ' ALABA MA
similarly situated, )

)

)

Plaintiffs, )

) Civil Action No.

)

)
vs. )

) CLASS ACTION

)
JRHBW REALTY, INC. d/b/aREALTY )
SOUTH, et al. )

)

Defendants. )

)

)

)

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT AND JURY DEMAND

Comes now, the above named Class Representative, Vicki V. Busby, both on her
own and on behalf of all others similarly situated, by and through her attorneys of record,

and for her complaint, alleges as follows:



NATURE OF THE CASE

This is a federal class action on behalf of a class consisting of all persons
whom qualify under applicable Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act
(“RESPA”) regulations and who have paid an “ABC Fee” to JRHBW Realty,
Inc. (hereinafter, “RealtySouth”) during the period when RealtySouth has
collected and/or accepted such fee in connection with a real estate settlement
involving a federally related mortgage loan within the applicable limitations
period.
Defendant, RealtySouth has unlawfully collected and accepted an ABC Fee
from the Class Members.
Defendant’s collection of the aforementioned ABC Fee is in violation of 12
U.S.C. § 2607, titled, “Prohibition against Kickbacks and Unearned Fees.”
The Class Plaintiff hereby seeks money damages, injunctive relief, and all
other relief as may be awarded under the law.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE
This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28
U.S.C. § 1331 as the conduct complained of herein is violative of the law of
the United States of America, 12 U.S.C. § 2607.
Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b) as: (1) the
corporate Defendant is a legal resident of this Judicial District; (2) many of the
acts, events, or omissions giving rise to the claim presented herein arose in this

Judicial District; and (3) the Defendant can be found in this Judicial District.



THE PARTIES
Plaintiff

7. Named Plaintiff, Vicki V. Busby, a widow, is more than 19 years of age and is
an adult resident of Jefferson County, Alabama. Plaintiff Busby was required
to pay RealtySouth an Administrative Brokerage Commission (“ABC Fee”) at
the closing and settlement where she purchased certain real estate in
connection with a federally related loan for which she was a borrower.

Defendant

8. Defendant, JRHBW Realty, Inc., d/b/a RealtySouth, an Alabama corporation,
provides real estate related services to consumers in the Birmingham area and
other parts of Alabama.

CLASS ALLEGATIONS

9. This class action is brought by the named representative plaintiff pursuant to
12 U.S.C. § 2607 (d)(5). A class action is appropriate and necessary in this
instance because RealtySouth has engaged in conduct violative of the Federal
Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, 12 U.S.C. § 2607 on a widespread and
systematic basis.

10. Pursuant to the United States Code Title 12 sections 2607(d)(5), 2614 and
Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(b)(2) and (b)(3), plaintiff, Vicki V. Busby,
brings this action on behalf of herself and all others similarly situated.

11. The class that plaintiff represents (the “Plaintiff Class™) is composed of all
persons who have paid an ABC Fee to RealtySouth during the applicable

limitations period and whose transactions qualify under applicable RESPA



regulations. The class expressly excludes any federal judge for the Northern
District of Alabama, as well as the judges’ immediate family members.
The Class Definition is as follows:
All individuals (expressly excluding the federal judiciary and the
judiciary’s immediate family members for the Northern District of
Alabama), whether or not having any relationship with Defendant, who
have paid an “ABC Fee” to Defendant pursuant to real estate closing
and/or settlement in connection with a federally related mortgage loan
during the applicable limitations period whose transactions are covered
and protected by RESPA regulations.
Plaintiff Busby is informed and on that basis alleges that the Plaintiff Class
numbers in excess of thousands of persons and is so numerous that joinder of
all members would be impracticable.
The exact size of the Plaintiff Class and the identity of all its members are
ascertainable from the business records of Defendant.
Questions of law and fact common to the Plaintiff Class exist and predominate
over questions affecting only individual members, including, inter alia, the
following:
a. Whether Defendant’s practice of collecting and accepting an ABC Fee is
violative of the Federal Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, codified at
12 U.S.C. § 2607.
b. Whether Defendant provided any new or additional service to class
members in exchange for the $149 ABC fee it has collected from each
class member.

¢. Whether Defendant’s charge of $149 for an ABC Fee is an unearned fee

under RESPA?



16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

d. Whether Defendant’s charge of $149 for an ABC fee is a duplicative fee

under RESPA?
The claim asserted by Plaintiff Busby in this action is typical of the claims of
the members of the Plaintiff Class.
Plaintiff Busby has obtained competent and experienced class counsel and will
fairly and adequately represent and protect the interests of the members of the
Plaintiff Class.
A class action is superior to other methods for the fair and efficient
adjudication of this controversy, since joinder of all members is impracticable.
In addition, because the economic damages suffered by the individual class
members may be relatively modest compared to the expense and burden of
individual litigation, it would be impracticable for members of the Plaintiff
Class to seek individual redress for the wrongful conduct alleged herein.
There will be no undue difficulty in the management of this litigation as a class
action.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

Plaintiff, Vicki V. Busby, purchased certain real estate in Jefferson County,
Alabama on May 26, 2004. That real estate is des&ibed as 6617 Amy Lane,
Trussville, Jefferson County, Alabama; Lot 9, Rosewood Sector three, Book
175, Page 41 Jefferson County Alabama.
In connection with the purchase and settlement, Plaintiff Busby entered into a

federally related loan as that term is defined in the Act.



22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

Plaintiff Busby employed an agent of RealtySouth in connection with said
purchase.

Deed and title were formally transferred to Plaintiff Busby on May 26, 2004.
At closing, RealtySouth added a settlement charge, called an “ABC FEE,” to
Plaintiff Busby’s settlement statement (i.e., “HUD-1 Settlement Statement™) in
the amount of $149.00.

This $149 ABC Fee was a separate and distinct charge and a separate and
distinct line item on the HUD 1 Settlement Statement. The ABC Fee was
charged in addition to the “Total Sales/Brokers Commission” of $9350
represented on Plaintiff’s HUD 1 Settlement Statement attached as Exhibit 1.
The Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, 12 U.S.C. § 2607 and the
implementing regulation, 24 CFR § 3500.14(c): prohibits certain conduct in
connection with federally related mortgage settlement services.

Said Act was enacted by the Congress in order that consumers be protected
from unnecessarily high settlement costs and for the express purpose of
reducing settlement fees for real estate transactions.

Said Act provides at 12 U.S.C. § 2607, in pertinent part, that: “No person shall
give and no person shall accept any portion, split, or percentage of any charge
made or —received for the rendering of a real estate settlement service in
connection with a transaction involving a federally related mortgage loan other
than for services actually performed.” The regulation adds the following

language at 24 C.F.R. § 3500.14 (c) “A charge by a person for which no or



29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

nominal services are performed or for which duplicative fees are charged is an
unearned fee and violates this section.”

At all times relevant to this Complaint, Defendant has unlawfully and on a
systematic basis charged and accepted purported settlement related charges, in
the form of “ABC FEE[S],” from consumers (the class plaintiffs) without
rendering any service in exchange for said fee.

In fact, in prior litigation Defendant’s Senior Vice President and Chief
Operating Officer submitted a sworn affidavit stating that the ABC Fee does
not cover any specific service and that the ABC Fee was simply an increase in
the price of RealtySouth’s commission. See Exhibit 2 attached hereto.

Thus, no new or additional service is provided for this additional settlement fee
with its own separate and distinct line item and charge on the settlement
statement. Therefore, RealtySouth’s charging and acceptance of the ABC Fee
violates RESPA because (1) it is a fee for which no service is rendered and/or
(2) it is a duplicate fee for services already rendered as part of the “total
sales/broker’s commission.”

Upon information and belief, for at least the past three years, RealtySouth has

" been charging and accepting settlement charges in the form of ABC fees from

thousands of class members.
The total time period during which Defendant has collected such fee is
unknown but is determinable from the business records of the Defendant and is

believed to be ongoing to this date.



34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

The charges for unlawful ABC Fees are reflected on the settlement statements
of RealtySouth customers. The documents reflecting the identity of the
in;lividuals to whom RealtySouth has charged and accepted this illegal fee are
contained within the settlement statements in the possession, custody and
control of RealtySouth or its agents.
FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
Violation of the Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act
12 U.S.C. § 2607; 24 C.F.R. § 3500.14
Plaiﬁtiff Busby, on behalf of herself and all others similarly situated realleges
and incorporates herein, as though set forth in full, the allegations of
paragraphs 1 through 34 above.
Defendant has unlawfully accepted settlement charges from consumers
(reflected on HUD-1 Settlement Statements) in the form of ABC Fees, in
connection with federally related mortgage loans, without rendering any
service in connection with said charge and/or Defendant has unlawfully
charged and accepted ABC Fees as a duplicative fees for services already
rendered as part of the total sales / broker’s commission.
Defendant’s aforementioned conduct is violative of 12 U.S.C. § 2607 and 24
C.FR. §3500.14.
REMEDIES SOUGHT
WHEREFORE, the Named Class Plaintiff, on behalf of herself and all others

similarly situated, prays for judgment against the Defendant as follows:



a. That this Court declare Defendant’s practice of collecting an ABC Fee at
closing as part of the settlement process violative of the Real Estate
Settlemént Procedures Act;

b. That this Court permanently enjoin Defendant from further collecting
ABC Fees in connection with federally related real estate settlement
services;

c. That Plaintiff Class be awarded treble the amount of damages sustained;

d. That the Plaintiff Class be awarded costs and attorney’s fees as provided
for by the Act and Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 23(h).

e. That Plaintiffs be awarded such other and further relief as the Court may

deem appropriate, just and proper.

Respectfully submitted,

Scott A. Powell / W

Don McKenna

Of Counsel:

HARE, WYNN, NEWELL & NEWTON
2025 Third Avenue North; Suite 800
Birmingham, Alabama 35203

(205) 328-5330

PLAINTIFF DEMANDS A TRIAL BY STRUCK JURY



it b

Scott Powell

Defendant’s Address

JRHBW Realty, Inc.

c/o Registered Agent: Thomas H. Brigham, Jr.
2510 20™ Place S.

Suite 400

Birmingham, Alabama 35223

10



* Al ) U. S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT B. TYPE OF LOAN
SETTLEMENT STATEMENT

v L[ ]ma 2 [ ]emaa 3 [x] conv.unms.

Preferred Title Agency, Inc. o[ Jva s [ Joonv.ms,
300 Office Park Drive, Suite 230

L 6. File Number: 7. Loan Number:
Birmingham, Alabama 35223 1902 1190263
(205)421-1010 fax: (205) 421-1050 5 Mormaags T Case e

C. NOTE: This form is furnished to W’@Yzc;&’al settlement\costs. Amounts paid to and by the settlement agent are sho;y?. Items markez i
(p-o.c.) were paid outside Y€ closing. They are shown here for infprmational purposes and are not included in the totals.
: icki V. Busby an unmarried womghn ’
D. Borrower: 237 Six Food Road h
Ohatchee, Alabama 36271 Vo' 4

E. Seller: | JoeD. West and Carol S. West husband and/fife
First Lenders M Corporation e =
F. Lender: W [Ow /
A A 5951
6117 AmyLane ~— .
G. Property: (T russville, Jefferson County, Alabama 35173-3752 é (é/ - / ?OSV
Lot 9, Rosewood Sector Three, Book 175, Page 41 Jefferson County, Alabama |

H. Settlement Agent:  ~Preferred.Title Agencyr-fre: % /

Place of Settlement: 300 Office Park Drive, Suite 230, Birmingham, Alabama 35223 Jefferson Couqty
L. Settlement Date: May 26, 2004 L pd
J. Summary of Borrower's Transaction K. Summary of Seller's Transaction
100. Gross Amount Due From Borrower: 400. Gross Amount Due To Seller:
101. Coniract Sales Price 187,000.00 | 401, Contract Sales Price 187,000.00
102. Personal Property 402. Personal Property
103. Settlement Charges to Borrower (line 1400) 1,716.58 | 403.
104. Payoff - 1st Mtg. - 404,
105. Payoff - 2nd Mtg. - 405.

Adjustments for Items Paid by Seller in Advance: Adjustments for Items Paid by Seller in Advance
106. City / Town Taxes 406. City/ Town Taxes
107. County / Parish Taxes 407. County / Parish Taxes
108. Assessments 408. Assessments

Proration of Fire Dlies May 26, 2004 thru Dec Proration of Fire Dues May 26, 2004 thru Dec
109. 31,2004 J, 111.80 { 409. 31,2004 111.80
120. Gross Amount Due from Borrower: 188,828.38 | 420. Gross Amount Due to Seller: 187,111.80
200. Amounts Paid by or in Behalf of Borrower: 500. Reductions in Amount Due to Seller:
201. Deposit / Earnest Money 1,000.00} 501. Excess Deposit (see instructions)
202. Principal Amount of New Loan 117,000.00 | 502. Settlement Charges to Seller (Line 1400) 11,965.50
203. Existing Loan(s) 503. Existing Loan(s)
Payoff of First Mortgage acct# 0621039182
204. ' 504. to ABN AMRO Mortgage Group, Inc. for Joe 106,655.79
D. West Caro!l S. West

205. 505. Payoff of Second Mortgage to
206. 506. Purchase Money Mortgage to

Adjustments for Items Unpaid by Seller: Adjustments for Items Unpaid by Seller:
210. City/ Town Taxes 510. City/ Town Taxes
11, County / Parish Taxes Oct 1, 2003 thru May 26, 536.10 | 511. County / Parish Taxes Oct 1, 2003 thru May 26, 536.10

2004 2004

212. Assessments 512. Assessments
220. Total Paid by / for Borrower: 118,536.10 | 520. Total Reductions in Amount Due Seller: 119,157.39
300. Cash at Settlement from / to Borrower: 600. Cash at Settlement to / from Seller:
301. Gross Amount due from Borrower (line 120) 188,828.38 | 601. Gross Amount due to Seller (line 420) 187,111.80
302. Less Amount Paid by/for Borrower (line 220)  118,536.10 | 602. 15‘;33 Reductions Amount due Seller (line 119,157.39
303. Cash From Borrower: $70,292.28 | 603. Cash To Seller: $67,954.41

I have carefully reviewed the HUD-1 Settlement Statement and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is a true and accurate statement of all receipts and
disbursements made on my account or by me in this transaction. I further certify that I have received a copy of HUD-1 Settlement Statement.

Borrower: - Seller:
Vicki V. Busby Joe D. West

Seller:

Carol S. West

The HUD-1 Settlement Statement which I have prepared is a true and accurate account of this transaction. I have caused or will cause the funds to be disbursed in
accordance with this statement.

. Date: May 26, 2004
Settlement Agent: File No.: 1902

Joseph Somma STGC 040419264
WARNING: It is a crime to knowingly make false statements to the United States on this or any other similar form. Penalties upon conviction can

include a fine or imprisonment. For details see: Title 18 U.S. Code Section 1001 and Section 101

EXHIBIT

HUD-1 May 2002 1 ' OMB No. 2502-0265
May 28, 2004 1:26 PM RESPA handbook 4305.2































